GACVB BUSINESS SESSION AGENDA
 February 19, 2014
Lake Lanier Islands, Georgia
Mission Statement: “To be the unified voice of Georgia’s destination marketing organizations and provide industry education and professional development opportunities to members."

Meeting called by the Board of Directors

Board Members  	Jane Sowell, President; Monica Smith, Vice President; Mark Vaughan, Secretary/Treasurer; Peter Bowden, Past President; Rashelle Beasley, Kym Hughes, Brett Huske, Joe Marinelli, Jay Markwalter, Scott McQuade, Tiffany Peavy, Elizabeth Vance

Executive Director:	Julie Musselman




           Call to Order & Welcome...	………Jane Sowell
           Approve Minutes	……Mark Vaughan
           Treasurer’s Report	……Mark Vaughan
 
           
           Old Business
           BEC Committee..…………………………………………..…………..Julie Musselman
           Content Committee..……………………………………….……………..Monica Smith
	Membership Committee..................................................................Elizabeth Vance
           Scholarship Committee.................................................................Rashelle Beasley
           Other Old Business..............................................................................……...Group

New Business
           GDEcD Tourism Update…………………………………........................Beda Johnson
           Legislative Update…………………………………....................................Lee Hughes
           2014 Governor’s Tourism Conference………………………...................Barry White
           Other New Business/Adjourn…………………………………….......................Group








2014 GACVB Committee Assignments 
Advocacy Pillar
· Public Policy Committee
Develops the annual policy platform, participates in the annual Tourism Day at the Capitol event, evaluates legislative affairs and works to solve specific issues for CVBs at the Capitol.  
  Joe Marinelli, Chairman; Barry White, Vice Chairman

Education Pillar
· Conference Oversight Committee
Works with GDEcD and industry representatives to manage the Governor’s Tourism Conference.
  Jane Sowell (President’s role); Peter Bowden (Past President’s role)

· Content Committee
Determines relevant content at Winter Meeting and Governor’s Tourism Conference, evaluates any other professional development opportunities. 
  Monica Smith, Chairman (Vice President’s role); Jonathan Dorsey, Spurge Richardson, Nerissa Serrano, Lisa Smith, Jane Sowell, James Tsismanakis

· Scholarship Committee
Plans and solicits prizes for Silent Auction, determines annual scholarships, reviews applications.
  Kym Hughes, Chairman; Rashelle Beasley, Vice Chairman

· Benchmark of Excellence Certification Committee
Oversees BEC program, BEC application review and GACVB Helpful Documents Library
Peter Bowden, Chairman; Janet Rodgers, Vice Chairman

Leadership Pillar
· Executive Committee
Budgeting, bylaws, policies & procedures, and annual staff review
  Jane Sowell, Chairman (President’s role); Monica Smith (Vice President’s role); 
  Mark Vaughan (Secretary-Treasurer’s role);   Peter Bowden (Past President’s role)

· Membership
Welcomes new members, conducts first time attendee orientation, reviews member benefits, dues structure, and marketing efforts.
  Elizabeth Vance, Chairman;   Peter Bowden, Vice Chairman
  *Committee members needed as ambassadors to first time attendees at meetings

· Nominating
Proposes annual slate of officers and directors for approval by membership.
  Peter Bowden, Chairman (Past President’s role);   2 active voting members who are not on the Board of Directors (per organization’s bylaws)




[bookmark: _GoBack]
DRAFT
GACVB Board Meeting Minutes	
November 19, 2013
Macon, Georgia
Board Members Present:  Jane Sowell, President; Monica Smith, Vice President; Peter Bowden, Past President; Richard Barclift, Rashelle Beasley, Kym Hughes, Joe Marinelli, Elizabeth Vance

Board Members Absent:  Mark Vaughan, Jay Markwalter, Janet Rodgers, James Tsismanakis

Staff:  Julie Musselman
Guests:  Beda Johnson, Lee Hughes

Jane welcomed all, established a quorum and called the meeting to order at 11:11am.  

In Mark’s absence, Julie reviewed the previous meeting minutes.  Joe made a motion to approve the minutes, seconded by Monica.  Motion carried.  Julie then reviewed the Treasurer’s Report, which included the October 2013 Profit and Loss and the October 31, 2013 Balance Sheet. Governor’s Tourism Conference income was not calculated completely, but Julie reported that it was estimated at approximately $4,000, significantly less than the $10,000 budgeted.  Reasons for this included less attendance and higher than expected audio visual fees.  The board agreed that budgets for 2014/2015 conferences should include an increase in audio visual.  Also, the board suggested that the traditional meeting pattern – half day, full day, half day, be adhered to even if the Governor’s schedule changes.  Richard made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report seconded by Rashelle.  Motion carried.  

Julie reviewed the Director’s Report, highlights of the report included:
Conducting a radio interview with Georgia News Network in the impact of the federal government’s shutdown on Georgia CVBs and creating and presenting a session on Working with your CVB for the Columbus CVB’s Collaborate Summit.

Old Business
BEC
The BEC program’s review board, in its current form, has two vacancies.  After much discussion the board determined the make-up of the review board will be:  Joe made a motion that the 5 review board members represent the heads of GDEcD Tourism Division, Southeast Tourism Society, GACVB, a BEC Certified CVB, and the Executive Director of GACVB.  The current President of GACVB will occupy the GACVB seat on the review board.  Seconded by Peter, motion carried.  The 2014 review board will include Kevin Langston, GDEcD Tourism Division, Bill Hardman, Southeast Tourism Society, Jane Sowell, GACVB, Peter Bowden, Columbus CVB, and Julie Musselman, GACVB.

Columbus State University will be conducting phone calls to see if there are CVBs interested in the program that will be submitting in the next few quarters.  It was suggested to put together a video with testimonials and that it may be helpful to host a workshop on how to complete the process on a bronze level application.  

Content
Winter Meeting agenda was outlined including Bill Geist as keynote speaker.  The topic of roundtable discussion or shirtsleeve sessions was discussed.  Previous meetings have included shirtsleeve sessions divided into CEO, Sales and Marketing & PR.  Monica suggested a new format of roundtable discussions focusing on 4-5 topics.  Several topics were suggested, then narrowed down to five:
What new measurements are you using
New concepts in Destination Sales & Service 
Working with Governments 
The ROI of Managing Special Events 
From Membership to Partnership
Monica and Jane will assist Julie in getting this session organized and selecting moderators for each roundtable.  

Membership
Elizabeth noted the committee has asked for ambassadors to help greet and introduce new members to others at the upcoming Winter Meeting.

Public Policy
Lee Hughes reported that this session was expected to be short - Elected officials cannot raise funds for their campaigns during the legislative session.  Discussion centered on what priorities should be outlined in GACVB’s 2014 Policy Platform.  Of the three points on 2013’s platform, the implementation of the Tourism Development Act was accomplished.  Protecting the hotel/motel tax for purposes of local tourism promotion was identified as the #1 policy point.  The question was asked if there was a chance in this legislative session that the GDEcD Tourism Division be granted more funds for statewide marketing?  Lee suggested that the membership have realistic expectations for this session and apprised that any legislation this session by those seeking re-election would likely be revenue neutral.  There was lengthy discussion of the state budget and strategies for increasing the dollars spent for statewide tourism marketing.  Beda reminded all that as state employees, she and Kevin are precluded from lobbying for additional dollars for their department.  It was suggested that in Lee’s session at next year’s GTC that he include a primer on the state budget and how it is created, augmented and eventually passed.   Julie will draft new language for the two policy points and send back to the board for approval.  

New Business
2014 Budget 
Julie reviewed the draft 2014 budget.  Joe made a motion to approve the budget and complete a review of Hostess City Celebrations’ contract for management services in the coming months.  Motion seconded by Peter.  Motion carried.
Nominating
Richard Barclift resigned his board position.  January 1st he is leaving the City of Chickamauga to open a restaurant with his family in Chattanooga.  The board wished Richard well.  Peter and the nominating committee members will work to fill Richard’s unexpired term before the Winter Meeting. 

GDEcD Update
Beda gave the board an update on the activities of GDEcD’s tourism division.  She noted that the Tourism, Hospitality & Arts Day at the Capitol activities are scheduled for January 27-28, 2014 and gave a recap of the schedule of events including a Georgia Civil War meeting after the events at the Capitol on the 28th.  Jane suggested that someone from the industry present the check to the Governor rather than the Commissioner of GDEcD.  

Julie noted that the next board meeting will be held at the Winter Meeting on Tuesday, February 18th from 10am – 12pm at the Lake Lanier Island’s Legacy Lodge and Conference Center. 

Richard made a motion to adjourn seconded by Peter.  Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 2:27pm. 





First Quarter Executive Director’s Report – February 13, 2014
Board of Directors
· Assisted Nominating Committee with information needed to fill vacancy

Marketing
· Created and sent bi-monthly eNewsletter (January I & II)
· Posted on Ning Blog, Events & Forums
· Coordinated Facebook presence with our social media sponsor –439 likes and growing
· Coordinated building a Twitter page with our social media sponsor  - 117 followers

Membership
· Welcomed new CVB member – Snellville Tourism & Trade
· Membership breakdown:  84 CVBs, 12 Corporate, 1 Education, 7 Life; 136 total member contacts
· 85 individual CVB members active on the Ning Member Network

Representation
· Represented GACVB at the annual Tourism, Hospitality & Arts Day at the Capitol events

Public Policy
· Created Tourism Day Toolkit that included resources for GACVB members

Winter Meeting
· Confirmed sponsor participation and attendee participation  - total of 101 registered 
· Income is slightly above $43K, similar to 2013, and expenses are also expected to be in line with 2013.






GACVB Profit & Loss Statement
January 2014 – Actual vs. Budget
[image: ]
[image: ]


GACVB Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2014

[image: ]
7

image2.emf
   WINTER MEETING EXPENSES

      WM Audio Visual 2,500.00

      WM Food & Beverage 16,000.00

      WM Online Registration Fees 450.00

      WM Printing & Supplies 750.00

      WM Speaker Fees 12,000.00

   Total WINTER MEETING EXPENSES $         0.00$  31,700.00

Total Expenses $  9,324.33$114,775.00

Net Operating Income -$1,599.33$    1,475.00

Net Income -$1,599.33$    1,475.00


image3.emf
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         Certificate of Deposit #3 20,000.00

         Checking 12,001.70

         Money Market Account 43,323.21

      Total Bank Accounts $ 75,324.91

      Accounts Receivable

         Accounts Receivable 50.00

      Total Accounts Receivable $        50.00

   Total Current Assets $ 75,374.91

   Other Assets

      Accumulated Depreciation -3,841.49

      Computer Equipment 1,907.47

      Office Equipment 2,841.00

      Software 300.00

   Total Other Assets $   1,206.98

TOTAL ASSETS $ 76,581.89

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            Accounts Payable -50.00

         Total Accounts Payable -$       50.00

      Total Current Liabilities -$       50.00

   Total Liabilities -$       50.00

   Equity

      Opening Bal Equity 57,153.66

      Retained Earnings 21,077.56

      Net Income -1,599.33

   Total Equity $ 76,631.89

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 76,581.89


image1.emf
Actual Budget

Income

   Board Meeting/Retreat Income 1,200.00

   GOVERNOR'S CONFERENCE INCOME 10,000.00

      GC Registration 0.00

      GC Sponsorship 0.00

   Total GOVERNOR'S CONFERENCE INCOME $         0.00$  10,000.00

   Interest Income 50.00

   Membership Dues 1,000.00 47,000.00

   Scholarship Income 7,000.00

   Uncategorized Income 0.00

   Voluntary Assessment 10,000.00

   WINTER MEETING INCOME

      Winter Meeting - Registration 3,750.00 21,000.00

      Winter Meeting - Sponsorship 2,975.00 20,000.00

   Total WINTER MEETING INCOME $  6,725.00$  41,000.00

Total Income $  7,725.00$116,250.00

Gross Profit $  7,725.00$116,250.00

Expenses

   ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

      Air Travel 400.00

      Lodging 2,000.00

      Meals 35.52 300.00

      Mileage Reimbursement 314.72 2,000.00

      Parking 52.00 325.00

   Total ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $     402.24$    5,025.00

   Awards 100.00

   Bank Charges 20.00

   Board Meeting/Retreat Expense 1,200.00

   Certification Programs Expense 100.00

   Computer and Internet Expense 21.15 750.00

   Continuing Education 500.00

   Contract Labor 3,335.00 40,000.00

   Copying &  Printing 100.00

   Corporate Registration Expense 30.00

   Dues 500.00 6,000.00

   Gifts 250.00

   Insurance Expense 1,300.00

   Legislative Representation 4,125.00 16,500.00

   Membership Services 1,500.00

   Office Supplies 155.34 500.00

   Postage, Shipping, Delivery 350.00

   Professional Fees 750.00

   Scholarship Awards 4,000.00

   Telephone 100.00 1,200.00

   Tourism Day At The Capitol 85.60 500.00

   Website 600.00 2,400.00


